Meeting Minutes for the SD Interagency Coordinating Council April 20, 2022 – 3:00 pm to 5:00 pm Virtual Via Teams

Members Present:

Carla Miller
Carrie Churchill
Cindy Fisher
Dawn Smith
Debra Willert
Jodi Berscheid
Joe Hauge
JoLynn Bostrom
Jordan Mounga

Kirsten Ducheneaux Laura Nordby Wendy Honeycutt Melanie Lundquist Michelle Martin Rochelle Holloway Valerie Kelly

Members Absent:

Cindy Michelson Gretchen Brodkorb Jaze Sollars Katherine Schmidt

Birth to 3 Staff:

Sarah Carter, Director Crystal Goeden, Program Specialist (Technical Assistance) Steve Livermont, Program Specialist (Data) Jen Kampmann, Program Specialist (Professional Development) Melissa Manning, Senior Secretary

Public:

Sharon Walsh, DaSy Technical Assistance Tony Ruggiero, DaSy Technical Assistance

ICC Chair Rochelle Holloway called the meeting to order at 3:02 pm.

Approval of Agenda – JoLynn Bostrom motioned to approve; Valerie Kelly second; motion carried.

Approval of the January 2022 minutes – Joe Hauge motioned to approve; Michelle Martin seconded; motion carried.

No public comments.

Holloway provided updates on SICC membership: reappointments were made for Kirsten Ducheneaux, Cindy Fisher, Michelle Martin and Jordan Mounga. Wendy Honeycutt, Occupational Therapist from Rapid City is a new appointment. The state is awaiting Governor's office confirmation of members to represent program preparation program, parent and SD legislator.

Birth to Three team members Jennifer Kampmann and Sarah Carter were joined by Sharon Walsh and Tony Ruggiero from the DaSy, OSEP sponsored national technical assistance center, discussing SPP/APR reporting indicator C4 Family Outcomes. Carter provided reminders of past work conducted by small work group made up of SICC members. Work group had spent time in 2020 and 2021 analyzing data and discussing the tool used to gather data for reporting of this indicator along with the method for distributing the tool with full SICC presenting recommendation to adopt the Early Childhood Outcomes Center (ECO) Family Outcomes Survey – Revised and to begin distributing the survey tool via an online format. The state implemented both of these recommendations 7/1/2021 with the start of a new reporting year. The recommendations were made to increase family participation / response rate. To date, with three quarters of a year reporting, the state reported a slight increase in response rate over last years response rate. The full year data will be provided at future SICC meeting.

T Ruggiero, DaSy, presented the new OSEP required C4 reporting feature. States, with stakeholder input, must adopt an additional demographic reporting feature. This feature must be in place by 7/1/2022 and reported on the FFY2022 SPP/APR, submitted 2/1/2024. This additional reporting feature will assist states in examining participation rates to ensure all parents voices are reflected and in turn helping the State evaluate the effectiveness of the Birth to Three program.

J Kampmann presented research conducted on recommendations OSEP presented to states as an option for the additional reporting feature. Findings and references available here https://boardsandcommissions.sd.gov/bcuploads/SICC%204-20-22%20Final.pdf.

SICC members discussed pros and cons of various demographic options. Crystal Goeden provided service coordinators recommendation of using Medicaid eligibility as the additional demographic feature. Joe Hauge made the motion recommending the state use Medicaid eligibility as the additional demographic reporting feature for indicator C4. Second by Valerie Kelly. Motion carried.

The FFY2020 SPP/APR was submitted 2/1/2022. OSEP has accepted targets recommended by the SICC. Currently there is a Clarification period. The state is responding to a few minor questions OSEP needed clarified.

On 4/1/2022 the state submitted the official child count for 2021. This count, taken on December 1 of each year indicated there were 1018 infants and toddlers on active IFSP's on 12/1/2021. This is an increase over the 12/1/2020 count of 917. Carter explained child count continues to climb, an unofficial count done on 4/1/2022 reported 1069 infants and toddlers on active IFSPs. This is very close the official 12/1/2019 count of 1092, which was pre-COVID numbers.

Carter updated SICC members on the upcoming increases to Medicaid provider rates. The Medicaid office notified Birth to Three they would be increasing their rates as of 7/1/2022. As Birth to Three reimbursement rates mirror Medicaid rates these rate increases along with the 6% increase approved by Legislators during the 2022 session. Rates affected by this are available here: https://boardsandcommissions.sd.gov/bcuploads/SICC%204-20-22%20Final.pdf. This increase is estimated to have an annual increase of \$375,000 to \$400,000 to the programs budget.

The state is reviewing Administrative Rules (ARSD 24:14) surrounding provider reimbursements. May 6, a package will be taken to the South Dakota Board of Education Standards to review the following:

1. Restructure reimbursement formula for Special Instruction and Family Training direct service providers. These early intervention services have not seen an increase in over 10 years. The

- changes will result in an increase and allow for incremental increases along with other EI providers. This will result in an estimate increase of \$49,000 annually.
- 2. Restructure reimbursement of travel. Rule language will reflect providers will be reimbursed based on actual miles traveled vs. units of miles. The projected change is a cost-savings of \$319,862.

Rules will be brought forward for a public hearing May 6, 2022, at the Board of Standards scheduled meeting.

SICC members were made aware of the Part C FFY2022 Grant period. Carter explained how program is funded (state and federal dollars) and the historical federal funding. The FFY2022 grant is for \$2,369,091. This is level funding from FFY2021 grant year. Carter described the expenditures and notified SICC members of category spending levels.

Holloway closed the meeting noting next meeting would be held sometime in July or August of 2022. The date was not determined yet as the state would want to ensure OSEP will have released annual determination information.

Holloway asked for a motion to adjourn. Jordan Mounga motioned, Carrie Churchill second, meeting adjourned at 4:45 pm.